संख्या भा.आ.प.: 4(3)/ 2018-मेडि/ <u>भारतीय आयुर्विज्ञान परिषद्</u> <u>नई दिल्ली</u> स्नातकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा सामिति

सेक्टर-8, पॉकेट-14, द्वारका, नई दिल्ली स्थित परिषद् के कार्यालय में 19.07.2018 को प्रात: 10.30 बजे हुए स्नातकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा समिति की बैठक का कार्यवृत्त

उपस्थित:

1	डॉ. एस.बी. सिवाच	अध्यक्ष,		
		पूर्व निदेशक, पंडित बी डी शर्मा पीजीआई,		
		रोहतक, हरियाणा		
2	डॉ. भानु प्रकाश दुबे	डीन		
		एल एन मेडिकल कॉलेज,		
	GUU	भोपाल		
3	डॉ. दत्तेश्वर होता	प्रोफेसर व विभागाध्यक्ष,		
		एससीबी मेडिकल कॉलेज एंड हॉस्पिटल, कटक,		
	10 20	ओडिशा		
4	📉 डॉ. ध्रुब ज्योति बोरा	प्रधानाचार्यमुख्य अधीक्षक-सह-,		
		जोरहाट मेडिकल कॉलेज एंड हॉस्पिटल,		
		जोरहाट (असम)		
5	डॉ. राजा बाबू पंवार	कुलपति		
	38	राजस्थान यूनिवर्सिटी ऑफ हैल्थ साइंस,		
	io	जयपुर		
6	डॉ. (श्रीमती) रानी भास्करन	अध्यक्ष,		
		ट्रावंकोरकौचीन मेडिकल कॉसिल-, तिरूअन्नतपुरम		
7	डॉ. वोरा नितिन सुमनचंद्रा	डीन,		
		जीएमईआरएस मेडिकल कॉलेज सोला, नजदीक		
		न्यू गुजरात हाई कोर्ट, सोला, एसहाईवे .जी.,		
		अहमदाबाद, गुजरात-380061		

डॉ. रीना नय्यर, सचिव (प्रभारी)

स्नातकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा समिति के अध्यक्ष महोदय ने इस बैठक में सभी सदस्यों का स्वागत किया है।

स्नातकोत्तर चिकित्सा शिक्षा समिति के सदस्य डॉ. दिलीप गोविंदराव म्हेसेकर, डॉ. के एस शर्मा, से अनुपस्थिति के लिए अवकाश आवेदन प्राप्त हुआ।

<u>No. MCI-4(3)/2018-Med./</u>

MEDICAL COUNCIL OF INDIA

POSTGRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee held on **19**th **July, 2018 at 10:30 AM** in the Council Office, Sector-8, Pocket-14, Dwarka, New Delhi.

Present:

1.	Dr. S.B. Siwach	Chairman,		
		Former Director, Pandit B D Sharma PGI,		
		Rohtak, Haryana		
2.	Dr. Bhanu Prakash Dubey	Dean,		
		L N Medical College,		
		Bhopal		
3.	Dr. Datteswar Hota	Professor & HoD,		
		SCB Medical College & Hospital, Cuttack,		
		Orissa		
4.	Dr. Dhruba Jyoti Borah	Principal-cum-Chief Suptd.,		
		Jorhat Medical College & Hospital,		
		Jorhat (Assam).		
5.	Dr. Raja Babu Panwar	Vice-Chancellor,		
		Rajasthan University of Health Sciences,		
		Jaipur		
6.	Dr. (Mrs.) Rani Bhaskaran	President,		
		Travancore-Cochin Medical Council,		
		Thiruvananthapuram		
7.	Dr. Vora Nitin Sumanchandra	Dean,		
		GMERS Medical College Sola, Near New		
	184	Gujarat High Court, Sola, S.G. Highway,		
	lā ()	Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380061		

Dr. Reena Nayyar – Secretary (I/c)

The Chairman welcomed the members of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee.

Leave of absence was received from Dr. Deelip Govindrao Mhaisekar & Dr. K S Sharma, Member(s), Postgraduate Medical Education Committee.

1. <u>Minutes of the last meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee</u> <u>– confirmation of.</u>

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee confirmed the minutes of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee meeting held on 10/07/2018.

2. <u>Minutes of the last meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee</u> <u>– action taken thereon.</u>

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee noted that the approval of the minutes of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee meeting held on 10/07/2018 is still awaited from the Oversight Committee.

3. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Psychiatry) course at Agartala Government Medical</u> <u>College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act,</u> <u>1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD (Psychiatry) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Professor & Head of Department Dr. Punyadhar Das, will be 70 years of 15.09.2018 before start of present session.
- 2. There is no Assoc.Prof. in the only Unit.
- 3. Faculty table is not signed by faculty/Residents.
- 4. OPD attendance upto 2 p.m. on day of assessment was 13.
- 5. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 47 %.
- 6. In the column "Stipend by Institute to Residents", it is stated "-". It needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & @ what rates.
- 7. Latest Journals in Central Library available only upto 2016.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD (Psychiatry) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

4. <u>Starting of MD (Pathology) course at Agartala Government Medical College,</u> <u>Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for</u> <u>the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Pathology) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Pathology) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>4(Four)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

5. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **2(Two)** to **4(Four)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

6. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Forensic Medicine) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Forensic Medicine) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. There is no Professor.
- 2. Workload of other Medico-legal parameters is low as detailed in the report.
- 3. Nil new book has been purchased for Departmental Library in last 3 years.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Forensic Medicine) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

7. <u>Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **4(Four)** to **11(Eleven)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

8. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **2(Two)** to **5(Five)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

9. <u>Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Asst. Prof.: 1.
- 2. Experience details of Dr. Sinam Rajendra Singh, Prof., Unit-IV are not provided in faculty table, without which his elibility cannot be decided. Moreover, he was absent on the day of assessment. Resultantly, Unit-IV left with only 3 Asst.Prof. only.
- 3. Dr. Nilotpal Dey, Asst.Prof. was absent on the day of assessment.
- 4. Unit 3 has only 2 faculty; hence it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 5. Unit 4 is headed by Asst. Prof.; hence it cannot be considered as a teaching Unit.
- 6. In the table of clinical material at Item § 7 in Summary on P. 6, the same workload is shown for the whole hospital & also for General Surgery which is not feasible.
- 7. Specialty clinics like Surgical Gastroenterology clinic, Paediatric Surgery clinic are not run.
- 8. Total number of IPD patients has decreased from 12,091 to 10,824 during the preceding 3 year period.
- 9. Latest Journals in Library available only upto 2017.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

10. <u>Increase of seats in MS (Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Agartala</u> <u>Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s</u> <u>10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Mamta Pradhan is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however, in the column of "Benefit of publications", only 3 publications are shown against requirement of 4; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. Abhijit Shil, Senior Resident in Unit 1 has only 2 y experience as Resident before appointment as Senior Resident; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 3. Dr. ArghamallyaDebbarama, another Senior Resident in Unit 1 is appointed as Senior Resident on 31/05/2018; however she possesses only MBBS qualification; hence not eligible to hold the post.
- 4. Resultantly there is no eligible Senior resident in Unit 1.
- 5. Obstetric OPD on day of assessment is only 70.
- 6. Total number of Major Operations in 2017 was only 611 implying daily average of 2.04 which is inadequate.
- 7. Total number of Normal Deliveries has decreased from 2,505 in 2015 to 2,473 in 2017.
- 8. ART is not available.
- 9. Latest Journals in Library available only upto 2016.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

11. <u>Increase of seats in MS (Ophthalmology) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Posterior Segment surgeries are not carried out.
- 2. Daycare operations are not performed.
- 3. On the day of assessment only 1 minor operation and nil day care operation.
- 4. Equipment like Slit Lamp Biomicroscope with teaching aid, Perkins' Tonometer are not available.
- 5. Facilities for Retinal Surgery are not available.
- 6. Eye Bank is not available.

- 7. The column "Stipend by Institute to Residents" is left blank. It needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & @ what rates.
- 8. Latest Journals in Library available only upto 2016.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

12. <u>Increase of seats in MS (Otorhinolaryngology) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 63.3 %.
- 2. Workload of BERA was NIL on day of assessment as well as on randomly selected days. It was only 2 in 2017.
- 3. Total number of IPD patients has decreased from 10,667 to 9,106 during the period of preceding 3 years.
- 4. Total workload of Laryngectomy; Laryngo/Tracheoplasty was NIL during the period of preceding 3 years.
- 5. Hearing Aid trials are not conducted.
- 6. Speech & Voice Analysis/services are not available.
- 7. Total number of Major Operations in 2017 was 432 implying daily average of 1.41 which is inadequate.
- 8. Audiologist is also working as Speech Therapist &BERA Technician.
- 9. NIL new book has been purchased for Departmental Library during last 3 years.
- 10. Equipment like High Definition Digital Camera with Recording System, OAE are not available.
- 11. Equipment like BERA are not functional.
- 12. Latest Journals in Library available only upto 2017 only. There are only 2 ENT journals available in Central Library. Library is partially air-conditioned.
- 13. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

13. <u>Starting of MD (Bio Chemistry) course at Agartala Government Medical</u> <u>College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act,</u> <u>1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Bio Chemistry) course at Agartala Government Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Bio Chemistry) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>4(Four)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

14. <u>Starting of MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at Agartala Government</u> <u>Medical College, Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the</u> <u>IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Average OPD of randomly selected days is 37.
- 2. Equipment like DLCO are not available.
- 3. Separate RICU is not available. It is part of common ICU.
- 4. Specialty clinic like Respiratory Rehabilitation clinic is not run.
- 5. In Departmental Library, total books are shown as 80; however, number of new books purchased in last 3 years is shown as 148 which is not feasible. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Agartala Government Medical College,Agartala, Tripura under Tripura University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

15. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Psychiatry) course at Amrita School of Medicine,</u> <u>Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University</u> <u>(Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year</u> <u>2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>2(Two)</u> to <u>3(Three)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

16. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Community Medicine) course at Amrita School of</u> <u>Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham</u> <u>University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the</u> <u>academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Community Medicine) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Community Medicine) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>2(Two)</u> to <u>5(Five)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

17.

Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and noted the following:

- Dr. Jai Thilak is shown as "Professor" in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however his experience is shown as "Assoc. Prof." w.e.f. 02/09/2011 till date. No explanation is provided for this dichotomy. Further, the column "Benefitof publications" is left blank implying NIL publication.
- 2. Dr. Thadi Mohan is promoted as Assoc. Prof. with experience of only 4 y 1 m as Asst. Prof.; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 3. Total number of Major Operations has decreased from 1,347 to 1,161 during the preceding 3 year period.

- 4. Total number of Minor + Daycare Operations in 2017 is only 594 implying daily average of 1.98 which is inadequate.
- 5. Details of books in the Departmental Library are not provided.
- 6. Attendance of faculty at Seminars, Journal Clubs, Case Presentations is not maintained properly.
- 7. Teaching records & attendance not maintained.
- 8. Casualty is located in a separate building away from the Emergency Medicine Department having 8 beds. The area designated as casualty is small approx. 25 ft. by 15 ft. having the chairs for waiting patients too. The beds are very closely spaced. There is one Defibrillator, One Cardiac monitor in the casualty. There is no crash cart available. There are two large bags containing emergency drugs and equipment for resuscitation. The bed occupancy at 11 a.m. was 02. No other equipment available in the casualty as required by the MSR.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

18. Increase of seats in MD (Emergency Medicine) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Emergency Medicine) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. K.P. Girish Kumar, Professor is appointed as Assoc. Prof. in Emergency Medicine straightaway without any experience in Emergency Medicine.
- 2. Dr. B.S. Dhanasekaran, Professor is appointed as Professor in Emergency Medicine straightaway without any prior experience in Emergency Medicine.
- 3. Total number of OPD patients has decreased from 28,949 in 2015 to 26,525 in 2017.
- 4. Casualty is located in a separate building away from the Emergency Medicine Department having 8 beds. The area designated as casualty is small approx. 25 ft. by 15 ft. having the chairs for waiting patients too. The beds are very closely spaced. There is one Defibrillator, One Cardiac monitor in the casualty. There is no crash cart available. There are two large bags containing emergency drugs and equipment for resuscitation. The bed occupancy at 11 a.m. was 02. No other equipment available in the casualty as required by the MSR.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Emergency Medicine) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

19. Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. OPD attendance upto 2 p.m. on day of assessment was only 91. Average of randomly selected days is 90.
- 2. Specialty clinics like Paediatric Cardiology clinic, Paediatric Nephrology clinic, Paediatric Endocrine clinic, PaediatricHaematology clinic; Paediatric Gastroenterology clinic; Paediatric Neurology clinic are not run by this department.
- 3. Thalassemia Day care Center is not available.
- 4. CPC is not held.
- 5. Casualty is located in a separate building away from the Emergency Medicine Department having 8 beds. The area designated as casualty is small approx. 25 ft. by 15 ft. having the chairs for waiting patients too. The beds are very closely spaced. There is one Defibrillator, One Cardiac monitor in the casualty. There is no crash cart available. There are two large bags containing emergency drugs and equipment for resuscitation. The bed occupancy at 11 a.m. was 02. No other equipment available in the casualty as required by the MSR.
- 6. Bed occupancy in PICU was 62%.
- 7. Latest Journals in Central Library available only upto 2017.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

20. <u>Starting of MD (Pharmacology) course at Amrita School of Medicine,</u> <u>Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University</u> <u>(Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year</u> <u>2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Pharmacology) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Medical and non-medical faculty are equal (2 each). This means 50% faculty is non-medical. However, maximum permissible non-medical faculty is 33%.
- 2. Equipment like Flame Photometer, Rota Rod are not available.
- 3. Casualty is located in a separate building away from the Emergency Medicine Department having 8 beds. The area designated as casualty is small approx. 25 ft. by 15 ft. having the chairs for waiting patients too. The beds are very closely spaced. There is one Defibrillator, One Cardiac monitor in the casualty. There is no crash cart available. There are two large bags containing emergency drugs and equipment for resuscitation. The bed occupancy at 11 a.m. was 02. No other equipment available in the casualty as required by the MSR.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Pharmacology) course at Amrita School of Medicine, Elamkara, Kochi, Kerala under Amrita Vishwa Vidyapeetham University (Deemed), Coimbatore u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

21. <u>Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Dr S N Medical College,</u> <u>Jodhpur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A)</u> <u>of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Dr S N Medical College, Jodhpur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Sandeep Tak is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, only 2 publications are cited against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. InduThanvi is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, only 2 publications are cited against requirement of 4; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. Manish Chaturvedi, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 01.04.2014 after the cut off date. He has no publications. Moreover, he was absent on the day of assessment.
- 4. Promotion of Dr. N.S. Rawat, Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 29.08.2016 after the cut off date without required 4 research publications.
- 5. Promotion of Dr. Naveen Kumar, Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 10.10.2014, after the cut off date without required 4 research publications. All publications quoted are after his promotion.
- 6. Dr. Ramesh Chandra is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 22/11/2017; however he does not have experience of 1 year as Senior Resident required as per Regulations; hence not qualified to hold the post. He was absent on the day of assessment. Resultantly Unit C at MGH has only 2 faculty & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.

- 7. Resultantly Unit C at MGH and Unit D at MDM are left with two faculty in each unit.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Dr S N Medical College, Jodhpur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

22. <u>Starting of MD (Forensic Medicine) course at Dr Vaishampayan Memorial</u> <u>Medical College, Solapur, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of</u> <u>Health Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year</u> <u>2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Forensic Medicine) course at Dr Vaishampayan Memorial Medical College, Solapur, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Forensic Medicine) course at Dr Vaishampayan Memorial Medical College, Solapur, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to **4(Four)** students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

23. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at Dr. B C Roy Post Graduate</u> <u>Institute of Paediatric Sciences, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal</u> <u>University of Health Sciences, Kolkata U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the</u> <u>academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Dr. B C Roy Post Graduate Institute of Paediatric Sciences, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences,Kolkata U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Sucharita Datta is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying nil publication against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. Rita Chatterjee, Professor, is 70 years on 10.07.2018. Resultantly, Unit-A left with 2 faculty.
- 3. Shortage of Senior Resident: 1.
- 4. Senior Residents who signed in the morning were not available in the afternoon.
- 5. Details like Average Attendance are not provided in respect of Specialty clinic like Asthma clinic.

- 6. Delivery room services are not available.
- 7. Total number of books in Departmental Library is shown as 100; however number of books purchased in last 3 years is shown as 120 which is not feasible. There is data mismatch.
- 8. In the column "Stipend by Institute to Residents", it is stated "-". It needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & @ what rates.
- 9. MRI workload on day of assessment was only 2 in the entire hospital.
- 10. There is no dialysis services.
- 11. Latest Journals in Library available only upto December, 2017.
- 12. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Dr. B C Roy Post Graduate Institute of Paediatric Sciences, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences,Kolkata u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

24. <u>Starting of MD (Paediatrics) course at Dr. Shankarrao Chavan Govt. Medical</u> <u>College, Nanded, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health</u> <u>Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Paediatrics) course at Dr. Shankarrao Chavan Govt. Medical College, Nanded, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Ruta Borgaonkar as Professor was absent on day of assessment.
- 2. Dr. Saleem Tambe is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, only 3 publications are cited against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered. He has shown professor in the column of designation and Assoc.Prof. in the column of experience from 04.06.2015 to till date.
- 3. Dr. Arvind Chavan is shown as "Assoc. Prof." in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of experience, it is shown as "Asst. Prof." w.e.f. 08/04/2015 till date. No explanation is provided for this dichotomy.
- 4. Dr. Sudhakar Bantewad is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 11/06/2018; however he does not possess 1 y experience required as per Regulations; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 5. OPD attendance upto 2 p.m. is only 61.
- 6. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 66 %.
- 7. Specialty clinics like Paediatric Cardiology clinic, Paediatric Nephrology clinic, Paediatric Endocrine clinic, PaediatricHaematology clinic, Paediatric Gastroenterology clinic, Asthma clinic are not run.
- 8. Equipment like Transport Incubator, Dialysis machines, are not available.
- 9. MRI is not available.
- 10. In the column "Stipend by State Govt. to Residents", it is stated "NA" which is not feasible. In the column "Stipend by Institute to Residents" also, it is stated "NA". It needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & @ what rates.
- 11. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Paediatrics) course at Dr. Shankarrao Chavan Govt. Medical College, Nanded, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

25. <u>Starting of MD (Paediatrics) course at Government Vellore Medical College,</u> <u>Vellore, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University,</u> <u>Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (4th July 2018) for Starting of MD(Paediatrics) course at Government Vellore Medical College, Vellore, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (4th July 2018) and noted the following:

1. With regard to Dr. E. Theranirajan, Professor his experience in 2 assessment reports is at variance as under:-

Cadre	Experience in Assessment dated				
	14.09.2017		20.06.2017		
	From	То	From	То	
Asst.Prof.	19.10.1998	14.01.2004	19.10.1998	14.01.2004	
Assoc.Prof.	06.02.2009	30.03.2013	06.02.2009	11.11.2012	
Professor	01.04.2013	Till date	11.11.2012	Till date	

Such retrospective changes to make a person eligible are not permissible; he cannot be considered.

- In this assessment also, experience shown is same as that in 14/09/2017 assessment & hence at variance with that shown in 26/06/2017 report.
- 2. Dr. R. Sreepriya is promoted as Asso. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 3. Resultantly faculty complement is incomplete in Unit I & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 4. Dialysis service is not available in this department.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Paediatrics) course at Government Vellore Medical College, Vellore, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

26. <u>Starting of MS (General Surgery) course at KanyaKumari Government</u> <u>Medical College, Asaripallam, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR</u> <u>Medical University,Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) for Starting of MS(General Surgery) course at KanyaKumari Government Medical College, Asaripallam, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. A.J. Selwyn Kumar is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. M. Arun Prabhu is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 06/10/2017; however he does not possess 1 y experience as Senior Resident required; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 3. Resultantly faculty complement is incomplete in Units I & IV and they cannot be considered as PG Units.
- 4. Dr. P. Senthil Kumar, is shown Professor in the column of designation and Assoc.prof. in the column of experience, which is not feasible.
- 5. Minor operations during 2017 are stated to be 59855, which mean 200 minor operations per day, which is not feasible. Data is non-genuine.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MS(General Surgery) course at KanyaKumari Government Medical College, Asaripallam, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

27. <u>Starting of MD (Paediatrics) course at KanyaKumari Government Medical</u> <u>College, Asaripallam, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical</u> <u>University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-</u> <u>20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) for Starting of MD(Paediatrics) course at KanyaKumari Government Medical College, Asaripallam, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Paediatrics) course at KanyaKumari Government Medical College, Asaripallam, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>4(Four)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

28. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at King George Medical</u> <u>University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University,</u> <u>Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (22th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at King George Medical University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University, Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (22th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at King George Medical University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University,Lucknow u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **21(Twenty One)** to **41(Forty One)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

29. Increase of seats in MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at King George Medical University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University, Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at King George Medical University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University, Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at King George Medical University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University, Lucknow u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **5(Five)** to **8(Eight)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

30. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at King George Medical</u> <u>University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University,</u> <u>Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at King George Medical University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University,Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1; (b) Asst. Prof.: 1.
- 2. Dr. Manoj Kumar is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying

NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered. He was not available on the day of assessment.

- 3. Promotion of Dr.Anit Parihar, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. He was Asst. Prof. for 4 years and he has no publications when promoted as Assoc.Prof.
- 4. Dr. Anjum Syed, Asst.Prof. was not available on the day of assessment.
- 5. Workload of DSA was Nil on day of assessment. It was NIL during period of preceding 3 years.
- 6. Nil new book has been purchased for Departmental library during last 3 years.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at King George Medical University, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University, Lucknow u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

31. <u>Starting of MS (General Surgery) course at KPC Medical College, Jadavpur, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Starting of MS(General Surgery) course at KPC Medical College,Jadavpur, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Vijay K. Jain is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered. Resultantly, Unit-I has no other Assoc.Prof.
- 2. Dr. Anindita Bhar is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 3. Dr. Arijit Roy is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 4. Dr. Jahar Majumdar is shown as Assoc. Prof. of Surgical Oncology in the faculty table; hence he is not a faculty of department of General Surgery & he cannot be considered as such. All his experience is in Surgical Oncology in a non-teaching Cancer Centre. Resultantly, Unit-V left with only 2 faculty.
- 5. Resultantly faculty complement is incomplete in Units I, III & V and they cannot be considered as PG Units.
- 6. Details of Senior/Junior Residents are not provided in the faculty table. It means, there are no Sr. Resident / Jr. Resident working in the department.
- 7. Details of Beds occupied in SICU on day of assessment are not provided.
- 8. CPC is not held.
- 9. Death Review meetings are not held.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MS(General Surgery) course at KPC Medical College,Jadavpur, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

32. <u>Starting of MD (Pathology) course at KPC Medical College, Jadavpur, Kolkata,</u> <u>West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata U/s</u> <u>10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Pathology) course at KPC Medical College, Jadavpur, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Tutors: 4.
- 2. Date of joining as Asst. Prof. in respect of Dr. Rabindranath Chaterjee is not shown in the faculty table; resultantly he cannot be considered as faculty at this Institute as such.
- 3. Equipment like HPLC, Blood Gas Analyzer are not available in this department.
- 4. Pathological post-mortems are not performed.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Pathology) course at KPC Medical College, Jadavpur, Kolkata, West Bengal under West Bengal University of Health Sciences, Kolkata u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

33.

Increase of seats in MD(Anatomy) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Anatomy) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. S.K. Chauhan, Assoc. Prof. was not available on the day of assessment.
- 2. Dr. Supriya Dhaboo, Professor, shown to be working in this institution only upto 31.08.2015. No details of her experience beyond this date has been given.
- 3. Blood Component facility is not available in the institution, which is a statutory requirement for starting PG course.
- 4. Latest Journals in Library available upto which date has not been provided.
- 5. Embryology & Genetics Laboratories are not available.
- 6. There are only 2 publications from the department in last 3 years.
- 7. Nil new book has been purchased for Departmental Library in last 3 years.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Anatomy) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

34. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Physiology) course at M G M Medical College,</u> <u>Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act,</u> <u>1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Physiology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Faculty table is not signed by faculty/Resident.
- 2. Postgraduate Degree of Dr. Gauri Bhaduri, Asst.Prof. is not recognized. She passed from this college only in 1999, why the 2 seats have not been recognized till date.
- 3. Blood Component facility is not available in the institution, which is a statutory requirement for starting PG course.
- 4. College authorities are advised to get 2 seats (permitted very long back), recognize at the earliest.
- 5. Latest Journals in Library available only upto 2017.
- 6. Equipment for Autonomic Function Tests, Neurology are not available.
- 7. Equipment like Digital Physiograph, Longendorf for Mammalian experiments, Treadmill are not available.
- 8. Yoga Laboratory is not available.
- 9. Additional technology to minimize animal experiments is not available.
- 10. NIL new book has been purchased for Departmental Library in last 3 years.
- 11. Facilities for teaching Applied Physiology are not available.
- 12. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Physiology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

35. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Pharmacology) course at M G M Medical College,</u> <u>Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act,</u> <u>1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Pharmacology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Upendra Kumar, Professor, could not produce his postgraduate degree.
- 2. Blood Component facility is not available in the institution, which is a statutory requirement for starting PG course.

- 3. One seat permitted long back is still not recognized. The college authorities should get that seat recognized at the earliest.
- 4. Equipment like Assembly Perfusion Apparatus for Mammalian Heart, Cook's Pole Climbing Apparatus, Digital pH meter, Photoactometer, Rota Rod, Plethysmograph are not available.
- 5. Equipment like Physiograph, Flame Photometer are not functional.
- 6. Animal House: CPCSEA registration is not done. Animal Ethics Committee is not constituted.
- 7. There is NIL publication from the department in last 3 years.
- 8. The column "Stipend by Institute to Residents" is left blank. It needs to be clarified whether stipend is paid to Residents & @ what rates.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Pharmacology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

36. <u>Starting of MD (Bio Chemistry) course at M G M Medical College,</u> <u>Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act,</u> <u>1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Bio Chemistry) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. Lakshman Lal, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 6.9.2015 after cut off date and he has no publications.
- 2. There is only 1 medical faculty and the remaining 4 are non-medical. However, maximum permissible non-medical faculty is 50%.
- 3. Blood Component facility is not available in the institution, which is a statutory requirement for starting PG course.
- 4. Laboratory services for patients are inadequate. Very basic test are done. No kits and consumables are available for other tests and all other investigations are out-sourced to a private company.
- 5. Latest Journals in Library available upto December, 2017 only.
- 6. Workload of investigations of Endocrinology, Other Fluids, Special investigations is nil.
- 7. Specialized services provided by the department are inadequate.
- 8. Several investigations are outsourced.
- 9. Equipment like Hot Air Oven, Chromatography Apparatus, pH meter are not available.

Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Bio Chemistry) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

37. <u>Starting of MD (Pathology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur,</u> <u>Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the</u> <u>academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Pathology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Blood Component facility is not available in the institution, which is a statutory requirement for starting PG course.
- 2. Workload of CT guided FNAC was NIL.
- 3. Workload of USG guided FNAC was NIL.
- 4. Workload of PT, APTT, TT is NIL.
- 5. Equipment like Microwave, Blood Gas Analyzer are not available.
- 6. Equipment like 3/5 Part Analyzer, PT & APT Analyzers, Flow Cytometer are not functional.
- 7. Facilities for Frozen Section, Histochemistry, Immunohistochemistry, Coagulation Disorders are not available.
- 8. Space is inadequate.
- 9. Pathological post-mortems are not performed.
- 10. Latest Journals in Library available only upto, 2017.
- 11. ICD 10 classification is not being used.
- 12. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Pathology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

38. <u>Starting of MD (Microbiology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur,</u> <u>Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the</u> <u>academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Microbiology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. B.P. Chaudhary, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 06.09.2015 after the cut off date and he has no publications.
- 2. Blood Component facility is not available in the institution, which is a statutory requirement for starting PG course.
- 3. Latest Journals in Library available only upto December, 2017 only.
- 4. ICD 10 classification is not being used.
- 5. Molecular Microbiology is not available.
- 6. Immunology services are not available.
- 7. Equipment like BOD Incubator are not available.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Microbiology) course at M G M Medical College, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand under Kolhan University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

39. Increase of seats in MD (Community Medicine) course at Moti Lal Nehru Medical College, Allahabad, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University, Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Community Medicine) course at Moti Lal Nehru Medical College, Allahabad, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University,Lucknow U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Khurshid Parveen is shown as "Professor" in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Asso. Prof." w.e.f. 18/08/2013 till date. No explanation is provided for this dichotomy.
- 2. Dr. Shama Shaikh, Assoc. Prof., Dr. Richa Singh, Asst. Prof., and Mr. Gyan Prakash, Statistician were absent on day of assessment.
- 3. There is no Epidemiologist.
- 4. There is no LMO in UHTC.
- 5. Details of Tutors are not provided in the faculty table.
- 6. Latest Journals in Central Library available only upto December, 2016.
- 7. Casualty has only 10 beds against the required 30.
- 8. On the day of assessment bed occupancy in RHTC was only 30%.
- 9. UHC: NIL Medical or Paramedical staff is available. Vaccine storage facility is not available. NIL equipment are available.
- 10. Posting of Interns at RHTC/UHC is only once or twice a week & not on continuous basis.
- 11. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Community Medicine) course at Moti Lal Nehru Medical College, Allahabad, Uttar Pradesh under King Georges Medical University, Lucknow u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

40. <u>Starting of MD (Bio Chemistry) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences,</u> <u>Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of</u> <u>the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (28th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Bio Chemistry) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (28th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Bio Chemistry) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences u/s

10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to $\underline{3(Three)}$ students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

41. <u>Starting of MD (Physiology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences,</u> Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) for Starting of MD(Physiology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Physiology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>3(Three)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

42. <u>Starting of MD (Pharmacology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences,</u> Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) for Starting of MD(Pharmacology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (2nd July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Pharmacology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>3(Three)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

43. <u>Starting of MD (Anatomy) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences,</u> Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Anatomy) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Anatomy) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>3(Three)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

44. <u>Starting of MD (Pathology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences,</u> <u>Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of</u> <u>the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (28th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Pathology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (28th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Pathology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to 3(Three) students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

45. <u>Starting of MD (Microbiology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences,</u> Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Microbiology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Microbiology) course at RUHS College of Medical Sciences, Jaipur, Rajasthan under Rajasthan University of Health Sciences u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to 3(Three) students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

46. <u>Starting of MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical</u> <u>Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut</u> <u>U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) for Starting of MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar

Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. The college got first LOP on 15.07.2008 to start the MBBS course, Dr. Sharad Goel, Professor, has been given teaching experience from 19.02.2008 when the college was not in existence and this is not permissible. Resultantly, he was Asst.Prof. for 3 years 6 months against the requirement of 4/5 years. Hence his promotion is not as per regulations and he cannot be counted.
- 2. The college got first LOP on 15.07.2008 to start the MBBS course, Dr. Sanjay Kumar Lal, Professor, has been given teaching experience from 01.02.2008, when the college was not in existence and this is not permissible. Resultantly, he was Asst.Prof. for 3 years 7 months against the requirement of 4/5 years. Hence his promotion is not as per regulations and he cannot be counted.
- 3. Resultantly, there is deficiency of Assoc.Prof. -1.
- 4. On the day of assessment there were only 3 MRI in the entire Hospital.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

47. <u>Starting of MS (Orthopaedics) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical</u> <u>Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut</u> <u>U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) for Starting of MS(Orthopaedics) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1.
- 2. Unit I which is the Unit of HOD does not have Assoc. Prof.; resultantly faculty complement is incomplete & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 3. Dr. Rahul Mishra & Dr. Rohit K. Verma, both Junior Residents, though presented in this department, were found to be working in other departments through their pay slips.
- 4. In case of Dr. (Col.) Shrawan Kumar Jaipuriyar, Professor, experience details in faculty table and those given in certificate issued by DGAFMS do not tally. As per DGAFMS certificate he worked as classified specialist at Secunderabad, Lucknow, Udhampur and Delhi. However, in the faculty table he has shown all his experience in AFMC, Pune. The information supplied amounts to misleading the Council.
- 5. Dr. Ishwar Meena and Dr. Ravi Kumar, both Sr. Residents reported after 11:00 a.m.
- 6. There was only 1 death out of 3246 admissions during last 1 year. This indicates that no serious patients with polytrauma are admitted.
- 7. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 58 %. Average occupancy of randomly selected days is 60 %.

- 8. There were only 2 Major, NIL Minor & NIL Daycare Operation on day of assessment.
- 9. In the O.T. list which had 7 names, only 3 patients could be identified and the remaining 4 patients were not available.
- 10. Out of OT list of the day prior to day of assessment, only 3 patients could be located in the wards.
- 11. Only 2 beds were occupied in SICU on day of assessment.
- 12. Specialty clinic like Fracture clinic, Hand clinic are not run. No faculty is appointed for the Specialty clinics.
- 13. Arthroplasty services are not available.
- 14. Nil new book has been purchased for Departmental Library in last 3 years.
- 15. MRI machine was non-functional on assessment day.
- 16. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MS(Orthopaedics) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Place before Ethics Committee – due to deficiency at Sr. 3 & 4, 9 & 10.

48. <u>Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Saraswati Institute of</u> <u>Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy,</u> <u>Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. The college got first LOP to start the MBBS course on 15.07.2008, Dr. Anil K. Kem, Prof. & HoD, has been given teaching experience from 01.03.2008 when the college not in existence and this is not permissible. Resultantly, he was Astt. Prof. for 3 years, 8 months against the requirement of 4/5 years. Hence, his promotion is not as per regulations and he cannot be counted.
- 2. Some of the patients in Unit IV & V have been admitted who did not merit admission & can be managed on OPD basis.
- 3. MRI workload for the whole hospital on day of assessment was NIL. That from General Medicine was also nil. MRI machine was non-functional on assessment day.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

49. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at Saraswati Institute of</u> <u>Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy,</u> <u>Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (4th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (4th July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Subhash C. Siloniya, Prof., has been given teaching experience prior to the college got first LOP to start the MBBS course, which is not permissible. Resultantly, he was Astt. Prof. for less than 4 years. Hence, his promotion is not as per regulations and he cannot be considered.
- 2. Shortage of Senior Resident: 1.
- 3. Workload of MRI was NIL on day of assessment. MRI was not functional on the day of assessment.
- 4. Workload of DSA was NIL on day of assessment.
- 5. Details of DSA machine are not provided. It is only C-Arm which cannot be accepted.
- 6. Latest journals available in the library only upto 2017.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

50. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Psychiatry) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical</u> <u>Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut</u> <u>U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. The Psychiatry OPD case register & Central case registration window showed 107 OPD cases in Psychiatry on the day of inspection, which did not matched with the scenario of less than 50-55 patients found sitting outside the OPD rooms between 10 am to 2 pm, while visiting the OPD at different intervals.
- 2. There were discrepancies in the Indoor admission data at multiple places number of admissions found in ward register were much less than shown in the case window computer.
- 3. OPD areas does not have clinical demonstration room.
- 4. The rooms shown as departmental office, on inquiry were found to be not belonging to Psychiatry Department, but shared by consultants from various departments visiting special ward patients in the hospital.

- 5. No ECT was given on the day of inspection. Hardly 5-6 ECTs were reported to be given in last 6 months. Resident doctors were not well aware about the procedure & the ECT register was found to mention contradictory details.
- 6. Though the MRI Register showed 6 MRI given on the day of inspection, on inquiry & checking the computer it was found that the machine was out of order. Though the CT scan register showed 27 scans done on 28.6.2018, on checking the computer it was found that there were 8 scans done actually.
- 7. The Psychiatric Social Workers & Clinical Psychologist presented during the inspection, were largely unaware about their role, duties & daily work in Psychiatry department.
- 8. Latest journals in the library available only upto 2016.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

51. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical</u> <u>Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut</u> <u>U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Yogesh Goel, Professor, has been given teaching experience prior to the college got first LOP to start the MBBS course, which is not permissible. Resultantly, he was Asst.Prof. for less than 4 years and hence his promotion is not as per regulations and he cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. Alok Agarwal, Sr. Resident, is not eligible. He has no 3 years experience as Jr. Resident from a teaching hospital when appointed Sr. Resident.
- 3. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 55 %. Average occupancy of randomly selected days is 55 % 65 %.
- 4. Average OPD of randomly selected days is only 50 60.
- 5. As per register 27 CT Scans were listed. However on checking the machine only 8 CT Scan have been done on that day.
- 6. There were only 12 death out of 4290 admissions during the last 1 year in a sensitive department like Paediatrics. This indicates that no really sick children are admitted.
- 7. Specialized services provided by the department are inadequate. Endoscopy, Dialysis services are not available in this department.
- 8. Even though MRI workload was shown as 6 on day of assessment, no records were found in the computer. Machine was non-functional on the day of assessment.
- 9. Latest journals available in the Central library were only upto 2016.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Saraswati Institute of Medical Sciences, Hapur, Uttar Pradesh under Ch. Charan Singh Universitiy, Meerut u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

52. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Pharmacology) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical</u> <u>College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra</u> <u>University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Pharmacology) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Pharmacology) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **4(Four)** to **6(Six)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

53. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Psychiatry) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical</u> <u>College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra</u> <u>University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (22nd June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (22nd June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Psychiatry) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **2(Two)** to **4(Four)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

54. <u>Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Sri Ramachandra</u> <u>Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri</u> <u>Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956</u> <u>for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>12(Twelve)</u> to <u>24(Twenty</u> <u>Four)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

55. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Sri Ramachandra</u> <u>Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri</u> <u>Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956</u> <u>for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (29th June 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Sri Ramachandra Medical College & Research Institute, Chennai, Tamil Nadu under Sri Ramachandra University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>3(Three)</u> to <u>6(Six)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

56. <u>Starting of MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Acharya Harihar Regional Cancer</u> <u>Centre, Cuttack under Utkal University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the</u> <u>academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) for Starting of MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Acharya Harihar Regional Cancer Centre, Cuttack under Utkal University U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Institute is only PG Institute for which faculty has to be as for 50 UG intake. Accordingly there is deficiency of (a) Asso. Prof.: 1.
- 2. There is NIL Senior resident.
- 3. Blood Component facility is not available in the institution, which is a statutory requirement for starting PG course. MoU with Red Cross Blood Bank cannot be accepted.
- 4. There were only 7 Major Operations on day of assessment.
- 5. Equipment like Fiberoptic Laryngoscope are not available.
- 6. MRI is not available.
- 7. Departmental Library has 64 books.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Acharya Harihar Regional Cancer Centre, Cuttack under Utkal University u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

57. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Adichunchanagiri</u> <u>Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri</u> <u>University, Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Speech & Voice Analysis services are not available.
- 2. Investigative facilities like Nerve Conduction, EMG are not available.
- 3. Equipment like Nerve Stimulator/Monitor are not available.
- 4. Attendance at Specialty clinic like Cancer related clinic is low: 2-3 cases/clinic.
- 5. Latest journals for Central Library available only upto November, 2017.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

58. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of</u> <u>Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University,</u> <u>Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. P. Gopinath is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however he does not have 2 research publications as required; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations &he cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. B.S. Lokesh, Senior Resident in Unit I, does not have 3 y experience as Resident in a teaching hospital before appointment as Senior Resident; hence not qualified to hold the post. There is no another Senior Resident in the Unit.
- 3. Dr. Satheesh G.S., Asst.Prof. was absent on the day of assessment.
- 4. Total number of patients in OPD has decreased from 44,497 in 2015 to 41,783 in 2017.

Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

59. <u>Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute</u> of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, <u>Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. M.R. Shankar is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however he does not have 4 research publications required as per Regulations; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations &he cannot be considered.
- 2. The following were absent on the day of assessment:-
 - (i) Dr. Yashas H.R., Asst.Prof.
 - (ii) Dr. Mohamed Nahid, Sr.Resident
 - (iii) Dr. Pottendla Venkatasiva Krishna, Jr. Resident.
- 3. Dr. Sachin K, Sr. Resident & Dr. Abhujit B.T., Sr.Resident are not eligible. They are DNB from non-teaching hospital and they have no 3 years experience from a teaching hospital as Jr. Resident when appointed Sr. Resident. Resultantly, there is no other Sr. Resident in Unit-D.
- 4. Total number of patients in OPD has decreased from 73,105 in 2015 to 71,212 in 2017.
- 5. IPD has decreased from 4896 in 2016 to 4709 in 2017.
- 6. There were only 9 MRI in the entired hospital on the day of assessment.
- 7. Specialty clinic like Cardiovascular & thoracic Surgery clinic is not run.
- 8. Attendance at Specialty clinic like Plastic Surgery clinic is low: 1-2 cases/clinic.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

60. <u>Starting of MD(Forensic Medicine) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of</u> <u>Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University,</u> <u>Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) for Starting of MD(Forensic Medicine) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (02/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Forensic Medicine) course at Adichunchanagiri Institute of Medical Sciences, Mandya, Karnataka under Adi Chunchanagiri University, Mandya u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to <u>2(Two)</u> students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

61. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Andhra Medical</u> <u>College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of</u> <u>Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. There are 8 Units of 30 beds each. Maximum permissible seats are 24. They have already 24 seats. Hence, no further increase can be given.
- 2. Cadre-wise details of experience of the faculty is not given in the faculty table.
- 3. There was only 1 Major Operation on day of assessment.
- 4. Total number of Normal Deliveries has decreased from 8,237 in 2015 to 7,486 in 2017.
- 5. MRI is not available.
- 6. Nil Journal is available from 2017 onwards.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

62. Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (04/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (04/07/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. There are 3 Units of 40 beds each. Maximum permissible seats are 12. They have already 12 seats. Hence, no further increase can be given.
- 2. Dr. Padmaja is appointed as Asst. Prof. in November 2017; however she does not have 1 y experience as Senior Resident; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 3. Dr. S. Praveena is appointed as Asst. Prof. in May 2018; however she does not have 1 y experience as Senior Resident; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 4. Resultantly there are only 2 faculty in Unit II & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 5. Dr. Ch. Sri Rajani, Senior Resident in Unit II does not possess 3 y experience as Resident in a teaching hospital before appointment as Senior Resident;

hence not qualified to hold the post. There is no another Senior Resident in the Unit.

- 6. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 71.5 %.
- 7. MRI is not available.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

63. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at</u> <u>Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR</u> <u>University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for</u> <u>the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. There are 2 Units but each Unit has only 15 beds; hence they cannot be considered as PG Units.
- 2. Dr. Sailaja Rani is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 28/07/2017; however she does not possess 1 y experience as Senior Resident required; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 3. There is no Sr. Resident in Unit-II.
- 4. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 25 %.
- 5. Data of Clinical Material for 3 years are not provided.
- 6. Data of Specialty clinics are not available.
- 7. CPC data are not available.
- 8. Details of Books in Departmental library are not provided.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Andhra Medical College, Visakhapathnam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

64. <u>Starting of MD(Palliative Medicine) course at B J Medical College,</u> <u>Ahmedabad under Gujarat University, Ahmedabad U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act,</u> <u>1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (21/06/2018) for Starting of MD(Palliative Medicine) course at B J Medical College, Ahmedabad under Gujarat University, Ahmedabad U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (21/06/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD(Palliative Medicine) course at B J Medical

College, Ahmedabad under Gujarat University, Ahmedabad u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 restricting the number of admissions to 2(Two) students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

65. <u>Starting of MD(Psychiatry) course at Dharwad Institute of Mental Health and Neurosciences (DIMHANS), Dharwad under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) for Starting of MD(Psychiatry) course at Dharwad Institute of Mental Health and Neurosciences (DIMHANS), Dharwad under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. MRI is not available.
- 2. There is no tie-up (MoU) with any Medical College for basic departments.
- 3. Number of Units & Beds in the respective Units are not specified.
- 4. There are 60 teaching & 152 service beds; it is not clear who are providing services on service beds.
- 5. NIL new book has been purchased for Departmental library during last 3 years.
- 6. The column "Stipend paid by State Govt. to Residents" is left blank which is not feasible. The column "Stipend by Institute to Residents" is also left blank. It is also stated "*Not Applicable (MCI First Inspection)*". It needs to be clarified whether stipend is proposed to be paid to Residents & @ what rates.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Psychiatry) course at Dharwad Institute of Mental Health and Neurosciences (DIMHANS), Dharwad under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

66. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical</u> <u>College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health</u> <u>Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. There are 50 beds in 2 Units; hence none of the Unit qualifies as PG Unit.
- Dr. V. Sandhya is shown as "Asst. Prof." in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Senior Resident" w.e.f. 18/09/2015 till date. It is also shown as "Asst. Prof." 19/02/2018 till date. No explanation is provided for this dichotomy.
- 3. Dr. M.G. Suman is shown as "Asst. Prof." in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Senior Resident" w.e.f. January 2014 till date. It is also shown as "Asst. Prof." 19/02/2018 till date. No explanation is provided for this dichotomy.
- 4. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 20 %. Average occupancy of randomly selected days is 20-30 %.
- 5. Only 2 beds were occupied in PICU, NICU each on day off assessment.
- 6. OPD workload was mainly for Immunization work only.
- 7. No Specialty clinic is run.
- 8. Equipment like Paediatric Bronchoscopy, Paediatric Endoscopy are not available.
- 9. Thalassemia Day Care Center is not run.
- 10. Child Counselling service is not available.
- 11. Space is inadequate as detailed in the report.
- 12. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

67. Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment is 17 out of 30 beds i.e. 58.66 %.
- 2. Workload for Laser procedures was NIL during preceding period of 3 years.
- 3. Laser equipment not available.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

68. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical</u> <u>College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health</u> <u>Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. S. V. Sunil Kumar is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 04/07/2017; however he does not possess 1 y experience as Senior Resident as required; hence his appointment is contrary to Regulations & he cannot be accepted.
- 2. Resultantly Unit I has only 2 faculty & it cannot be considered as PG Unit.
- 3. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

69. Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (28/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Shortage of Senior Residents: 3.
- 2. There is no Sr. Resident in Unit-I,II & III.
- 3. Dr. Pushpa Satish Kumar, is shown Assoc.Prof. in the column of designation and Asst.Prof. in the column of experience, which is not feasible.
- 4. OPD attendance upto 2 p.m. on day of assessment was only 102 which is bare minimum to start PG course. Average OPD of randomly selected days was 80-90 only.
- 5. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment was 73 %.
- 6. Units II, III & IV have less clinical workload.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

70. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Community Medicine) course at Gajra Raja Medical</u> <u>College, Gwalior under Madhya Pradesh Medical Science University, Jabalpur</u> <u>U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Community Medicine) course at Gajra Raja Medical College, Gwalior under Madhya Pradesh Medical Science University, Jabalpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Statistician cum lecturer: 1.
- 2. Dr. Anil Agrawal is designated as Professor; he is so designated after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 3. Dr. Mahendra Choubey is shown as "Asso. Prof. (Designated" in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Asst. prof." w.e.f. 21/06/2007 till date. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 4. Bio Statistics section is not available.
- 5. RHTC: Dean does not have full control. There is NIL Medical staff under control of Community Medicine department.
- 6. UHC: Dean does not have full control. There is NIL Medical staff under control of Community Medicine department.
- 7. Nil new book has been purchased for Departmental library in last 3 years.
- 8. There is no Epidemiologist.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Community Medicine) course at Gajra Raja Medical College, Gwalior under Madhya Pradesh Medical Science University, Jabalpur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

71. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Physiology) course at Gajra Raja Medical College,</u> <u>Gwalior under Madhya Pradesh Medical Science University, Jabalpur U/s</u> <u>10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Physiology) course at Gajra Raja Medical College, Gwalior under Madhya Pradesh Medical Science University, Jabalpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (27/06/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Physiology) course at Gajra Raja Medical College, Gwalior under Madhya Pradesh Medical Science University, Jabalpur u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **1(One)** to **7(Seven)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

72. <u>Starting of MD(Emergency Medicine) course at Karnataka Institute of Medical</u> <u>Sciences, Hubli under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka</u> <u>U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (26/06/2018) for Starting of MD(Emergency Medicine) course at Karnataka Institute of Medical Sciences, Hubli under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (26/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. The department of Emergency Medicine is created but not planned & functioning well. It is partially functioning.
- 2. None of faculty is trained in Emergency Medicine.
- 3. Only 2 faculty are appointed in Emergency Medicine. The rest are deputed from other departments.
- 4. Dr. Madhuri Kurdi is appointed as Professor of Emergency Medicine straightaway from the post of Professor of Anaesthesiology without any experience in Emergency Medicine. There is no evidence of training in Emergency Medicine.
- 5. Dr. Venkatesh Mulimani is appointed as Professor of Emergency Medicine straightaway from the post of Professor of Orthopaedics without any experience in Emergency Medicine. There is no evidence of training in Emergency Medicine.
- 6. None of Senior Residents has PG degree in Emergency Medicine or 3 y experience as Resident in Emergency Medicine; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 7. Departmental Library has only 34 books.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Emergency Medicine) course at Karnataka Institute of Medical Sciences, Hubli under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

73. <u>Starting of MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Karnataka Institute of Medical</u> <u>Sciences, Hubli under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka</u> <u>U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (25/06/2018) for Starting of MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Karnataka Institute of Medical Sciences, Hubli under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (25/06/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Jagadish Sutagatti, Assoc.Prof., passed DNB in 2004 and MD in 2005. He cannot be Lecturer from 1999. Hence his promotion is not as per regulations.
- 2. Dr. Puneeth Nayak, Sr. Resident, is not eligible. He is DNB from nonteaching hospital and he has no 3 years experience from a teaching hospital as Jr. Resident when appointed Sr. Resident.
- 3. Dr. Rajesh S Revankar, Sr. Resident, is not eligible. He is DNB from nonteaching hospital and she has no 3 years experience from a teaching hospital as Jr. Resident when appointed Sr. Resident.
- 4. Resultantly, department is left with 2 Eligible Sr. Residents against the requirement of 4.
- 5. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for starting of MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Karnataka Institute of Medical Sciences, Hubli under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

74. Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from 4(Four) to 8(Eight) students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

75. Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from 3(Three) to 8(Eight) students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

76. Increase of seats in MS (Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. K. Shwetha is promoted as Asso. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- Dr. Kala is shown as "Assoc. Prof." in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as Professor w.e.f. 20/11/2015 till date. No explanation is given for this dichotomy. Further in the column of "Benefit of publications", it is stated "No" implying NIL publication.
- 3. Dr. Susmitha is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 4. There is no Senior Resident in Unit III.
- 5. There was NIL Minor & NIL Daycare Obstetric Operation on day of assessment.
- 6. Total number of Operative Deliveries has decreased from 356 in 2015 to 132 in 2017.
- 7. Total number of Caesarean Sections has remained static over a period of 3 years from 1,115 in 2015 to 1,109 in 2017.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

77. <u>Increase of seats in MS (Ophthalmology) course at Meenakshi Medical</u> <u>College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi</u> <u>University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. Sundararajan, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 02.11.2015 after the cut off date and he does not have 4 research publications.
- 2. Dr. N. Sathish Kumar is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 3. Dr. Sivaram Reddy is shown as "Assoc. Prof." in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as Professor w.e.f. 29/08/2016 till date. Further the column of "Benefit of publications" is left blank implying NIL publication. Hence, his promotion as Professor is not as per regulations.
- 4. Resultantly, Unit-II is left with 2 faculty and it cannot be considered as a PG Unit.
- 5. Faculty table is not signed by any faculty members.
- 6. Eye Bank is not available.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

78. <u>Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Meenakshi Medical</u> <u>College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi</u> <u>University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Nitin Jain is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. Gireesh is promoted as Assoc. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 3. Dr. Poorna Prasad is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 27/09/2017; however he does not possess 1 y experience as Senior Resident required as per Regulations; hence his appointment is contrary to Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 4. Dr. M. Siva Kumar is appointed as Asst. Prof. on 23/06/2017; however he possesses only 6 m experience as Senior Resident against 1 y required as per Regulations; hence his appointment is contrary to Regulations &he cannot be considered.
- 5. Specialty clinic like Nephrology clinic, Gastroenterology clinic, Neurology clinic are not run.
- 6. Only 2 books have been purchased for Departmental library during last 3 years.

7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

79. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at Meenakshi Medical</u> <u>College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi</u> <u>University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and noted the following:

1. Workload of the following has decreased over a period of 3 y as under:

#	Parameter	Workload	
		2015-16	2017-18
1	Contrast Radiology	1,078	984
2	MRI	5,461	4,953
3	Mammography	845	572
3	Ultrasound (Gray Scale)	54,104	54,008
4	USG guided FNAC	1,106	1,085

- 2. Workload of DSA was NIL during the period of preceding 3 years.
- 3. DSA is not available in the department.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

80. <u>Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Meenakshi Medical</u> <u>College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi</u> <u>University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic</u> <u>year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from 5(Five) to 15(Fifteen) students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

81. <u>Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Meenakshi Medical College</u> <u>and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University</u> <u>(Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-</u> <u>20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. P. Sankaralingam, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 11.09.2013 after the cut off date without 4 required research publications. All his publications quoted are after his promotion.
- 2. Dr. M.L. Chandra Sekarna is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations &he cannot be considered.
- 3. Dr. Sudarshan Kamble is promoted as Asso. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 4. NIL new book is purchased for Departmental Library during last 3 years.
- 5. Equipment like Hip Arthroplasty set, Knee Arthroplasty set are not available.
- 6. Space for faculty is inadequate.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur, Tamilnadu under Meenakshi University (Deemed), Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

82. <u>Increase of seats in MS (Otorhinolaryngology) course at Shri Satya Sai</u> <u>Medical College and Research Institute, Kancheepuram, Tamilnadu under Sri</u> <u>Balaji Vidyapeeth (Deemed University), Pondicherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act,</u> <u>1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Shri Satya Sai Medical College and Research Institute, Kancheepuram, Tamilnadu under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth (Deemed University), Pondicherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Shri Satya Sai Medical College and Research Institute, Kancheepuram, Tamilnadu under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth (Deemed University), Pondicherry u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from 1(One) to 3(Three) students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

83. <u>Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Shri Satya Sai Medical</u> <u>College and Research Institute, Kancheepuram, Tamilnadu under Sri Balaji</u> <u>Vidyapeeth (Deemed University), Pondicherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956</u> <u>for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Shri Satya Sai Medical College and Research Institute, Kancheepuram, Tamilnadu under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth (Deemed University), Pondicherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (6th July 2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Shri Satya Sai Medical College and Research Institute, Kancheepuram, Tamilnadu under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth (Deemed University), Pondicherry u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>4(Four)</u> to <u>10(Ten)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

84. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Mahatma Gandhi</u> <u>Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji</u> <u>Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the</u> <u>academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (06/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (06/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>3(Three)</u> to <u>6(Six)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

85. <u>Increase of seats in MD(DVL) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and</u> <u>Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University,</u> <u>Puducherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (06/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(DVL) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (06/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(DVL) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>5(Five)</u> to <u>6(Six)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

86. Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (06/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (06/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College and Research Institute, Puducherry under Sri Balaji Vidyapeeth University, Puducherry u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>7(Seven)</u> to <u>11(Eleven)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

87. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Navodaya Medical</u> <u>College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences,</u> <u>Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Anaesthesiology) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20

from <u>4(Four)</u> to <u>6(Six)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

88. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Navodaya Medical College,</u> <u>Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s</u> <u>10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(Ophthalmology) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from **2(Two)** to **4(Four)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

89. <u>Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Navodaya Medical</u> <u>College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences,</u> <u>Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(General Medicine) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>8(Eight)</u> to <u>10(Ten)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

90. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Navodaya</u> <u>Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences,</u> <u>Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. The college got 1st LOP to start the MBBS course on 22.10.2002, Dr. Shashikala Patil, Professor, has been given teaching experience from 22.03.2002 when the college was not in existence and this is not allowed. Resultantly, she was Asst.Prof. for 4 years 4 months against the requirement of 5 years. She has no publications when promoted. Hence her promotion is not as per regulations and she cannot be counted.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. Nisha Kanchan, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. She was promoted on 24.03.2016 after the cut off date without 2 required research publications.
- 3. Gyanae. OPD only 40 on the day of assessment.
- 4. Equipment like LEEP are not available.
- 5. IUI and IVF are not available.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MS(Obstetrics & Gynaecology) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

91. <u>Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Navodaya Medical College,</u> <u>Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s</u> <u>10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(Orthopaedics) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>6(Six)</u> to <u>8(Eight)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

92. <u>Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Navodaya Medical College,</u> <u>Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s</u> <u>10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS(General Surgery) course at Navodaya

Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>5(Five)</u> to <u>10(Ten)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

93. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Navodaya Medical College,</u> <u>Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s</u> <u>10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Paediatrics) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>4(Four)</u> to <u>7(Seven)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

94. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Navodaya Medical</u> <u>College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences,</u> <u>Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and noted the following:

- 1. On the day of assessment OPD was 58 only, which is bare minimum to start the PG course.
- 2. Bed occupancy in RICU on assessment day was 60%.
- 3. There is no technician in department.
- 4. Investigation and procedure load of the department of pulmonary medicine is inadequate as evident from the bronchoscopy, pulmonary function testing & sleep laboratory records (Bronchoscopy 04 cases per month polysomnograhy 02 patients 2017 & no patients done in 2018, no intercostals tube drainage done, no pleural biopsy performed, no lung biopsy performed in last 06 months as evident from the department records).
- 5. On the day of assessment 24 patients were present in 30 beds of the department bed occupancy is 80%. On the review of department hospital record bed occupancy on an average 20 to 30% was noted.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for increase of seats in MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

95. <u>Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at</u> <u>Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health</u> <u>Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Dermatology, Venerology & Leprosy) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>3(Three)</u> to <u>6(Six)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

96. Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2019-20.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (10/07/2018) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Navodaya Medical College, Raichur under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2019-20 from <u>4(Four)</u> to <u>6(Six)</u> students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

Meeting ended with a vote of thanks to the Chair.

(Dr. Reena Nayyar) Secretary (I/c)

New Delhi, dated the <u>19th July, 2018</u>

<u>A P P R O V E D</u>

(Dr. Siri Bhagwan Siwach) Chairman